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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Calvert City, Kentucky, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Calvert 
City, Kentucky's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States . 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Calvert City, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementwy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis on pages 3-10, the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Special Revenue Municipal 
Aid Fund on pages 40-41, and pension schedules on pages 42-43 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose offonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City of Calvert City, Kentucky 's basic financial statements. The letter from the mayor, and combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements on pages 44-45 are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the audi ting procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The letter from the mayor on page 11 has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 3, 2018, on our 
consideration of the City of Calvert City, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of 
Calvert City, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

~ (!_,/J 1fa_,, Lt.P 
Paducah, Kentucky 
April 3, 2018 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

This Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition of the City of Calvert City, Kentucky is intended to 
provide those who may be interested a narrative overview and analysis of the fiscal condition of the City. The information 
presented herein should be weighed in conjunction with the financial statements (pages 12-46) provided to fully understand the 
fiscal status of the City of Calvert City on June 30, 2017 and as a basis for projecting and forecasting the needs, not only for 
the immediate future but for the long term. 

Financial Highlights: 

City total assets exceeded its total liabilities on June 30, 2017 by $32,715,977. Of this amount, $7,870,571 is unrestricted and 
therefore available to meet the City's continuing obligations. 

The total net assets of the City increased by $260,920 from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

As of June 30, 2017 the City's combined ending fund balances was $9,568,538 an increase of $252,040 from the end of the 
previous year. Of this amount, $7,318,355 of these funds was unassigned and available for current expenditures. 

The unassigned fund balance of the general fund represents 177% percent of the total 2017 general fund expenditures. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements, which consist of three 
components: I) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Reporting the City as A Whole 

Government-wide financial statements 

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is "ls the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result 
of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a 
whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using 
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting, used by most private-sector companies. Current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid . 
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These two statements report the City's net assets, the difference between assets, what the citizens own, and liabilities, what the 
citizens owe, as one way to measure the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases and decreases in the City's 
net assets is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial 
factors, however, such as changes in the City's property tax base, income tax base, and the condition of the City's capital assets 
(roads, buildings, and sidewalks) to assess the overall health of the City. 

The City accounts for all activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities under governmental and business­
type activities: 

• Governmental activities: all of the City's basic services are reported here, including police, fire, street maintenance, parks and 
recreation, and general administration. Income taxes, property taxes, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. Fee 

charges to customers to help cover most of the cost of the City's refuse operations are reported here. 

• Business-Type activities: the City's water and sewer systems services are reported here. Revenues are primarily from charges 
for services. Costs (expenses) are primarily to provide services. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund financial statements 

Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 14. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most 

significant-funds and not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state statutes. However the City Council 
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (Ex. Capital Project Fund) or to show that it 
is meeting legal responsibilities for grant funds (Ex. Municipal Aid Grant Fund). 

Governmental.funds: The City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of 
those funds and the balances leH at year-end that are available for spending. The Governmental fund statements provide a short-term 

view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. We 
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation statement at the end of the fund financial statements. 

Business-type funds: The City's Water and Sewer System is an enterprise fund and is reported here. Operations of the System are 
accounted for and financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise. As such, its revenues are expected to 

cover the expense of providing services, capital maintenance, and debt service. As a proprietary fund, a distinction is made between 
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Notes to the financial statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to understanding the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 21-40 of this report. 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

The following section presents a condensed financial comparison of net assets, revenues and expenses and provides explanation for 
significant changes. Please see the following for the condensed Statement of Net Assets and condensed Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the previous and current fiscal year. 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Current assets $ 9,888,152 $ 9,523,427 $ 1,828,831 $ 1,851,225 $11,716,983 $11,374,652 
Non-current assets 13,326,842 12,951 ,236 12,338,392 12,000,344 25,665,234 24,951,580 

Total Assets 23,214,994 22,474,663 14,167,223 13,851,569 37,382,217 36,326,232 

Deferred pension contributions 811,046 588,374 166,455 163,362 977,501 295,466 

Liabi I ities: 
CuiTent liabilities 423,451 308,432 308,755 245,761 732,206 554,193 

Non-current liabilities 2,980,010 2,292,115 1,838,113 1,487.008 4,818,123 3,779,123 

Total Liabilities 3,403,461 2,600,547 2,146,868 1,732,769 5,550,329 4,333,3 I 6 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 82,142 234,463 11 ,270 55,132 93,412 289,595 

Net assets: 

Net invested in capital assets 13,302,127 12,890,804 11,034,925 11,044,998 24,337,052 23,935,802 
Restricted net assets 444,741 391,288 63,613 67,639 508,354 458,927 
Unrestricted net assets 6,793.569 6,945,935 1,077,002 1,114,393 7,870,571 8,060,328 

Total net assets $20,540,437 $20,228,027 12, 175,540 $ 12,227,030 $32 715 ,977 $32,455,057 

As of June 30, 2017, the City had assets greater than its liabilities of $32,715,977, an increase of $260,920 from the previous year. The 
City's governmental activities accounted for $312,410 of the increase in net position. The business-type activity accounted for 
($51,490) of the remainder of the increase. 

The majority of the City's net assets (74%) are invested in capital assets (streets, drainage, buildings, equipment, water and sewer 
system, etc.). Restrictions for special purpose are imposed upon 2% of the net assets. Unrestricted assets available for general 
expenditures account for 24% of the City's net assets. 

(Continued on next page) 
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Comparison of 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

For the Years Ended June 30, 

Governmental Activities Business-T~e Activities Total 
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Revenues: 
Program revenues : 

Charges for services $ l26,6l5 $ 128,397 $ 1,626,889 $ 1,658,089 $ I ,753,504 $ 1,786,486 
Operating grants and 

contributions 43 ,873 37,317 43,873 37,317 
Capital grants and 

contributions 2,250 l5,088 7,053 237,403 9,303 252,491 
General revenues: 

Property taxes 1,157,465 1,158,916 1,157,465 1,158,916 
Payroll taxes I ,486,368 l ,395,023 1,486,368 1,395,023 
Other taxes 1,017,282 966,860 1,017,282 966,860 
License, permits and fees 535,255 428,977 535,255 428,977 
Other revenue 163,394 148,898 17,558 35 627 180,952 184 525 

Total revenue 4,532,502 4,279,476 1,651,500 1,931, 1 l9 6,184,002 6,210,595 
Expenses 

General government 1,151,443 1,057,335 1,151,443 1,057,335 
Public safety 1,263,445 1,231 ,649 1,263,445 1,231,649 
Sanitation 319,617 303,916 319,617 303,916 
Highways and streets 898,323 871 ,234 898,323 871,234 
Parks and recreation 484,246 467,445 484,246 467,445 
Interest on long-term debt 3,018 4,543 3,018 4,543 
Water and sewer l ,802,990 1 695,512 1,802.990 1,695,512 

Total expense 4,120,092 3,936, l22 1,802,990 1,695,512 5,923,082 5,631,634 
Increase in net assets 

before transfers 412,4 lO 343,354 (151,490) 235,607 260,920 578,961 
Transfers ( 100,000) (100,000) 100,000 100,000 
Increase or (decrease) in 

net assets 312,410 243,354 (51,490) 335,607 260,920 578,961 
Net assets - beginning of 
year 20,228,027 19,984,673 12,227,030 11,891 ,423 31,876,096 31,876,096 
Net assets - end of year $20,540,437 $20,228,027 $12,175,540 $12,227,030 $32,1 37,0 16 $ 32 455,057 

Revenues 

Normally, the City's governmental revenues are primarily from the collection of various taxes. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017 the major sources of revenues are : Personal and real property taxes - 26%; Payroll taxes - 33%; Franchise and Insurance Premium 
taxes - 22%. Charges for services, grants, contributions, fees, and licenses combined represent the balance of revenues. 

The City's business-type activity revenues were primarily from charges for services - 98.5%, and grants and other revenues - 1.5%. 

Expenditures 

The costs of all governmental activities were $4. l million. The Statement of Activities shows that $126 thousand was financed by those 
who use the services; $46 thousand was financed by grants and contributions with the city's general revenues financing $3.95 million. 

Approximately 90% of the total costs ( expenses) of $1.8 million of the business-type activities were financed by charges for services. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City's total revenues were $38 thousand more than budgeted. Higher than estimated license tax revenues was the primary reason 
for this . There are several sources of revenue which are difficult to accurately estimate but actual total revenues were close to budget. 
The City's total expenditures were $102 thousand less than budgeted and savings were distributed throughout the line items of each 
department. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

The City's investments in capital assets as of June 30, 2017 for its governmental activities were $13 .3 million, net of depreciation as 
reflected in the schedule below: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure and land 

improvements 
Water and sewer system 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 
General equipment and 

furnishings 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 
2017 2016 

4,799 
497 

5,083 

1,633 
480 

835 

13,327 

$ 

$ 

4,876 
195 

5,035 

1,636 
472 

737 

12,951 

Capital Assets 

June 30, 

(In thousands, net of depreciation) 

$ 

$ 

Business-Type Activities 
2017 2016 

283 
1,098 

10,738 

140 

79 

12,338 

$ 

$ 

283 
943 

10,542 

137 

95 

12,000 

$ 

$ 

Major additions to capital assets during the current year include the (in thousands): 

Land 
Infrastructure and land 

improvements 
Water and sewer system 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 
General equipment and 

furnishings 

$ 

$ 

23 

700 

75 
117 

237 
1,152 

$ 

$ 

185 

365 

85 
50 

152 
837 

$ 

$ 

787 

27 

4 
818 

$ $ 

1,193 

10 
$ 1,203 $ 

Total 
2017 2016 

5,082 
1,595 

5,083 
10,738 

1,633 
620 

914 

25,665 

23 

700 
787 

75 
144 

241 
1,970 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5,159 
I, 138 

5,035 
10,542 

1,636 
609 

832 

24,95 1 

185 

365 
1,193 

85 
50 

162 
2,040 

At year end, the City had $504,715 of leases payable and $823 ,468 of notes payable outstanding. The leases, bonds, and notes payable 
were issued to finance equipment and infrastructure. Detailed information on the city's long-term debt can be found in Notes F and G 
on pages 36-38 of the report. 
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Future Operations 

Calvert City condu tcd public hearings, workshops and surveys of the citizenry in 20 I 4 to establish strategic goals 
for the city. These goals and objectives were to be the primus for the city's direction for future projects based on the 
responses received from the citizens. The city has begun construction on several of these projects. One of the most 
ambitious goals is to connect Calvert City's downtown to Kenu1cky Dam Village State Resort Park via a mu lti-use 
trail. The goal of this project was not just connectivity, but to promote tourism by creating an aesthetically pleasing 
draw for the motoring public from the 1-24/1-69 interchange at US Highway 62 into bo1J1 the city and the State Park 
highlighting the northern entrance of Kentucky Lake. Th is project is being constructed in segments. The first and 
second segments are being constructed by the state. The third and fourth segments are being constructed by the city. 
Segment one is under construction currently as part of the interchange reconfiguralion for 1-69. Segment two' s 
design is under review and geo-testing. It will run along the sou thside of Hwy 62 from Truck Plaza lane to just past 
Airport Road in the state park. It will include the multi-use trail and a vegetation boulevard, egmcnl three is under 
design review. It will start at Hickory Street and run along the south ide of East 51

1, Avenue, through Memorial and 
Old Park ending just east of the east entrance to Old Park. Segment four will extend eastward from segment three, 
running east on East 5th Avenue and then southward on Lone Valley Road to the westside of segment one al the 
intersection of US Hwy 62 and Kennedy Drive. The multi -use trail is a shared trail for pedestrians and bicyclists. 
Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) grants funding for mu lti-use trails is avai lable on a competitive basis. 
The city did not receive grant funding this year but has reapplied for a TAP grant to assist in funding for the 
construction of segment four of the trail. 

In 2017 the city contracted with a group from Washington University to conduct research and interviews with 
residents and non-residents to assist us with branding and to establish a course of action to increase the city 's 
population and commerce. The study found that the city should focus on empty nest individuals, feeling that they 
were our best mfJrket. Other recommendations were made based on their findings including the creation of two new 
positions within the city, one for marketing and the other for business development. 

Calvert City understands the need and strives continually to be fiscally responsibl and more em ient. This includes 
reducing our energy costs and consumption whenever poss ible, efficient ly utilizi ng our skilled workf rce, and 
closely monitoring our expenditures. Reduction of our energy costs is typi al ly done by utilizing new technologies 
that pay for themselves over a fixed period of years through cost sn vings. The ily continues to install or replace 
existing lights and fixtures with LED lights and fixtures throughout the city. The city' s facilities maintenance 
technician continues to identify and terminate electrical services that arc either not needed or under-utili zed. Other 
energy saving applications includes insulation upgrades, thermal windows, and more energy efficient HV AC 
systems. The city continues to incorporate applications such as automated and programmable controls and replace 
existing fixtures with more energy efficient systems. 

The city has established a maintenance program throughout its facilities with emphasis on repair of existing or 
replacement with more economical systems. The goal is to move from response maintenance to preventative 
maintenance for the city facilities. The Fire Training Center and Frank Riley Fire substation have had numerous 
improvements and are almost completed. The Civic Center, park facilities and City Hall are scheduled for future 
renovations. 

The city's workforce continues to enhance its personnel's capabilities through specialized training. The city is 
adding special training for employees to insure the proper management of the new splash pad operations. Equipping 
employees with the knowledge and tools needed lo meet the ever-changing demands is a continuous and ongoing. 
Its design is to build employee morale and skills and insure the safety of the residents and employees. 

The City's Safety Committee and safety training program is now in full stride. Periodic safety audit inspections now 
occur to help insure a safe working environment for employees. Results of the inspections are forwarded to the 
department heads for remediation of violations and affirmation of jobs well done. Employees are en ouraged to 
help identify and address safety issues through regular meetings and safety classes and by assessing a job site and 
the operation(s) to be performed for possible dangers and hazards. Employees are encouraged to discuss the project 
and their role in the operation for clarity and safety. Employee are also encouraged to report hazardous conditions 
or equipment to their supervisor for repair or replacement. The city has rep laced all of its early warning sirens and 
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added three (3) additional sirens; one at Kentucky Dam State Resort Park, one in Camelot subdivision and one on 
Shar-Cal Road. These are areas that were not previously served. 

To increase our workforce's ability to cope with the increasing workloads, we replace aging equipment with new 
and better equipment. This year the city has added a new zero-turn mower, ½ -ton pickup, a 1-ton pickup and a 
police car. 

The Calvert City Cemetery Board this year completed the new entrance from West 5th Avenue and acquired 
ownership of the mausoleum . The Fire Training Center has added new firefighting training props and expects to 
continue adding more in the future. 

The Parks of Calve11 City are in the fourth year of the Board 's five-year strategic plan and its vision for the park 
system. The Memorial Park splash pad has begun construction and will soon be open to the public. The tennis court 
is undergoing enhancements to its electrical system and adding a water fountain . Old Park's electrical service was 
moved underground, and new LED lighting was installed . Field #5 fencing came in over budget and was not done. 
The Park Board reviewed the plans for this field and has decided to re-orient the field. This will be done in next 
year's budget after grading and drainage are completed. In Memorial Park, a decorative block wall was located 
between the parking lot and the soccer fields to provide safety and an aesthetical touch. In Doctor's Memorial Park 
the Basketball court surface was refinished and new safety compliant bleachers were added at fields #3 and 4. 

The Calvert City Street Revitalization Program is now in its third five-year program. This program has been highly 
successful in getting the city streets to a very good condition. The program is developed by an independent third 
party engineering firm to establish an annual, accelerated, and prioritized repair of city streets based on the greatest 
need. Flooding and flash flooding are ever present issues of the city and it continues an aggressive storm water 
drainage program of culve11 replacement and/or repair and reworking storm water conveyors as needed to ensure the 
proper drainage of storm water. Inspection and assessment of storm water infrastructure and prioritization of 
maintenance continue. This year's projects included Oberton Road realignment; the replacement of the bridge on 
West 2nd A venue and widening of the streets in what is commonly referred to as Adamstown. Here the streets were 
for the most part single lanes. The widening will allow for two lanes and improve the storm water conveyors in the 
area. 

In the area of economic development, the city maintains active involvement in the development of the Marshall 
County-Calvert City River Port, and continues to work with Marshall County Economic Development director Josh 
Tubbs. The city is preparing to conduct a study for a Transportation Master Plan which will include a Greenways 
Master Plan component as it continues to explore direction and funding sources for infrastructure projects . 

During the audit period, the focus remained on replacement and repair of infrastructure. For the year appro, imately 
$'800,000 was expended on capital improvements to the water & sewer system. Work lo reduce excessive 
infiltration and inflow from the sanitary sewer system serving Lhe portion of town between the Paducah & Louisvill 
Railroad and 5th Ave. continued. Sections of structurally deficient sewer mains were relined using cured in place 
liner technology. Once complete, all sewer mains, manholes and laterals on city right of way should be rehabilitated 
to a 'like new condition. Post construction flow monitoring will be conducted to evaluate the success o f the program. 
Cost data from project activities will be used to project costs in other areas of the city. Dw-ing the period additional 
sanitary sewer assessments were conducted in the Camelot Subdivis ion, Maple A vc. and Adam stown areas to 
identify apparent defects. The data obta.ined from the assessment is being evaluated for use in developing 
appropriate sewer rehabilitati on strategies for these areas. Two sanitary lift stat ions were rehabilitated by repla ing 
piping, rai l systems and pumps. a lvert ily has 20 lift stations that are maintained by the Water & Sewer 
Department. The average life span for mechanical and electrical systems for each of the lift stations is typically on 
the order of 15 years. We expect that sim ilar work will be required for 2 to 3 lift stations per year to assure reli able 
operation. 

The feasibility study for a new Regional Wastewater Plant was completed during the period. Cost projections have 
been completed and estimates of the annualized cost of operation have been provided to each of the project partners. 
Implementation of the project has been delayed. There is concern among the project partners regarding the 
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projected cost of service compared with the current cost of service with existing facilities. For the near term, it 
appears that existing wastewater treatment facilities will stay in p lace. As regulations become more stringent, the 
need to proceed with the project on a regiona l bas is may bee me a priority. The Board of Public Util ity 

ommiss ioners has decided to proceed with improvements to the Citis existing wastewater plant. A project is 
underway to remove excess bio-solids that have accumulated during the time the plant has been in operation. Other 
improvement projects are planned to replace the liners in two of the lagoon cells and to make improvements to the 
disinfection system. 

Engineering for the Phase IV - Heights Area Water Main Replacement Project has been completed. This is the final 
ph ase of the Heights area water system rehabilitation proj ect to move the water system from the rear of lots in the 
area to along the streets. The project has improved fire flows through larger pipes that are configured in a 
strengthened grid . Calvert City received an improved ISO rating for fire protection this past inspection cycle. 
Calvert City Fire Chief Fred Ross attributes the improved fire flows in the system as a contributing factor in 
receiving the improved rating. 

Going forward we will continue to focus on maintenance and rehabilitation of infrastructure. For implementation of 
the City's strategic objectives to be successful, the infrastructure serving the community must be reliable and meet 
regulatory requirements. The City's Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan is being revised and projects required to 
meet system needs and strategic goals and objectives are being prioritized. Improvements to the system required to 
maintain the current level of service will be costly. Historically, the City has been able to maintain a very 
competitive rate structure. Demographic trends within the community and water use trends are presenting some 
challenges in balancing operation and improvement expenses with available revenues . Several expense categories 
continue to increase at a rate greater than inflation including personnel related expenditures, utilities, and increased 
testing requirements needed for compliance with regulatory standards. Challenges remain with system revenues as 
industry conservation efforts have reduced water use and subsequently our sales have decreased in terms of volume 
consumed. Expenses associated with the water and sewer system do not decrease in proportion with reduced sales. 
The trend is evident in the income statement presented in this audit. A cost of service study and rate analysis will be 
completed in the upcoming year to assist management in assessing the efficiency of operations and the adequacy of 
the rate structure. We plan to meet the challenges associated with increased expense and a reduced operational base 
in an open non-biased manner. We plan to be proactive in making the changes that are necessary to maintain the 
best course for Calvert Water. 

Requests for Additional Information 

This report is intended to provide the readers with a general overview of Calvert City ' s finances and to provide 
information regarding the receipts and uses of fu nds. If you need clarification regarding a statement(s) made in this 
reporr or need additional information, please conla 1 Calvert City Hall , Attn : City Admin istrator, 861 East 5th Ave., 
P.O. Box 36, Calvert City, KY 42029 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



City of Calvert City 
861 East 5th Avenue 
P.O. Box 36 
Calvert City, KY 42029 

KFNTlJC.KY 

Office 270-395-7138 
Fax 270-395-5554 

www.calvertcity.com 

One of my favorite books is "Oak Hill", a record of William Draffen's loving attempt to 
capture the magic of Calvert City's history. In this labor of love, Mr. Draffen records a brief 
conversation between Mr. John Tichenor and Calvert City's founder, Mr. Potilla Calvert in 
which Mr. Calvert challenges Mr. Tichenor, "If you ever drink out of Cypress Creek you'll never 
leave Calvert City." A fact for those ofus who have drank, we well understand! 

There is no place, anywhere near this place, quite like this place-Calvert City surely is 
the best place to live, play, and work. Just ask the young and old who play in our parks. Ask the 
members of the Calvert City Streetwalkers, and they will give testimony to the quality walking 
trails and sidewalks. Go ahead, check out our library, our schools, and our places of worship, all 
of which reflect quality! 

With excitement I tell you that Calvert City's quality continues to improve. The tennis 
courts, the 18-hole disc golf course, the Memorial Park fountain, and the new multi-use trail 
provide excellent opportunity for many residents to enjoy quality of life.. Add to that, the 
addition of the Kentucky Dam Village State Resort Park to our City and the newly acquired 
Kentucky Dam Airport and you have opportunities only limited by our vision. See why in 
Calvert City, young and old alike, sing praises to the "City of Opportunities". 

Wanting opportunities to continue and desiring to expand social and economic norms, 
Calvert City's government continues infrastructure development and explores new methods of 
attractiveness. So, you will find us restoring and building. You'll hear of environmental plans 
for a new water treatment plant that will provide purity for Mr. Calvert' s "Cypress Creek" 
drinking water. 

That is Calvert City-a city of unique opportunity. After sixty eight years of residency, I 
believe, like Mr. Calvert, that our secret is in the water. So, I invite you to drink with us! 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Lynn B. Jones 
Mayor 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

Primarr Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,310,243 $ 1,526,817 $ 10,837,060 
Receivables (net) 534,769 266,107 800,876 
Internal balances (2,342) 2,342 
Prepaid expenses 45,007 31,731 76,738 
Other current assets 475 1,834 2 309 

Total current assets 9,888,152 I 828,831 I 1,716,983 

Non-current assets: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 5,296,070 1,380,749 6,676,819 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 8,030,772 10,957,643 18,988,415 

Total non-current assets 13,326,842 12,338,392 25,665,234 

Total Assets 23,214,994 14,167,223 37,382,217 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
DefeJTed pension contributions 81 I 046 166,455 977,501 

Total deferred outflows of resources 811 ,046 166,455 977.501 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 262,074 81,600 343,674 
Accrued payroll 26,604 7,758 34,362 
Accrued compensated leave and other accrued expenses 110,058 89,514 199,572 
Current maturities of notes payable 29,883 29,883 
Current maturities of lease payable 24,715 100,000 124,715 

Total current liabilities 423 ,451 308,755 732,206 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Accrued compensated leave 2,243 462 2,705 
Pension obligations 2,977,367 664,066 3,641,433 
Lease payable 380,000 380,000 
Notes payable 793,585 793,585 
Unearned revenues 400 400 

Total non-current liabilities 2,980,010 1,838, 113 4,818, 123 

Total Liabilities 3,403,461 2,146,868 5,550,329 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Difference between projected and actuarial 

earnings on pension plan investments 82,142 I 1,270 93,412 
Total deferred inflows of resources 82,142 11,270 93 ,412 

NET POSITION 
Net invested in capital assets 13,302,127 11,034,925 24,337,052 
Restricted for: 

Special revenue 444,741 444,741 
Capital projects 40,500 40,500 
Debt service 23,113 23,113 

Unrestricted 6,793 569 1,077,002 7,870,571 
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 20 540,437 $ 12, 175,540 $ 32,715,977 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Functions/Programs ~ens es 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 1,151,443 
Capital Outlay 
Pub I ic safety 1,263,445 
Sanitation 319,617 
Highways and streets 898,323 
Parks and recreation 484,246 
Interest on long-term debt 3,018 

Total governmental activities 4,120,092 

Business-type activities: 
Public water and sewer 1,802,990 

Total primary activities ~923,082 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Program Revenues 

Charges 
for 

Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ $ $ 

43,873 
107,079 

19,536 

126,615 43,873 

1,626,889 

$ 1.753,504 $ 43,873 __ $ 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Taxes, levied for bank deposits 
Personal property 
Omitted tangibles 
Payments in lieu of taxes 
Payroll ta,"(es 
Insurance premiums tax 
Franchise taxes 

License, permits and fees 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 
Interest and investment earnings 

Transfers 

2,250 

2,250 

7,053 

___2_,_303 

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 

Net position - ending 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (1,149,193) $ $ (1,149,193) 

(1,219,572) 
(212,538) 
(898,323) 
(464,710) 

(3,018) 
(3 ,947,354) 

(3,947,354) 

995,552 
23,102 

108,783 
20,734 

9,294 
1,486,368 

944,759 
72,523 

535,255 
49,946 
40,517 
72,931 

(100,000) 
4,259,764 

312,410 

20,228,027 

$ 20,540,437 $ 

(169,048) 

(169,048) 

-
-

-

5,027 
12,531 

100,000 
117,558 

(S 1,490) 

12,227,030 

12,175,540 $ 

(1,219,572) 
(212,538) 
(898,323) 
(464,710) 

{3,018) 
(3.947,354) 

(169,048) 

(4,116,402) 

995,552 
23,102 

108,783 
20,734 

9,294 
1,486,368 

944,759 
72,523 

535,255 
49,946 
45,544 
85,462 

4,377,322 

260,920 

32,455,057 

3V15,977 



ASSETS 
Cash 

CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2017 

General 
Fund 

$ 6,006,056 

Construction 
Fund 

$ 2,859,446 

Special Revenue Funds 
Non-Major 

Municipal Governmental 
Aid Fund Funds 

$ $ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 8,865,502 
Cash - restricted 
Receivables 

415,060 29,681 444,741 

Property and franchise tax 
Payroll and insurance tax 
Other 
Due from other funds 

Prepaid expenses 
Restricted membership and security deposits 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Unearned revenues 
Due to other funds 
Other accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll 

Total I iabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities and fund balances 

21,387 
513,286 

96 
15,208 
45,007 

475 
$ 6,601,515 

262,627 
400 

17,550 
29,983 
26,604 

337,164 

45,482 

284,126 
5 934,743 
6,264,351 

$ 6 601 515 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental acti vities are not linancial 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in 
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

$ 2,859,446 

2,859,446 

2,859,446 
$ 2,859 446 

Pension obl igations and related deferred inflows and outflows are not due 
and payable in lhe current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, arc not du and payable 
in the current period and therefi re are not reported ill the funds. 

Net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 415,060 $ 29,681 

415,060 29,681 

415,060 29,681 
$ 415,060 $ 29,681 

===== 

$ 

21,387 
513,286 

96 
15,208 
45,007 

475 
9,905,702 

262,627 
400 

17,550 
29,983 
26,604 

337 164 

45,482 
444,741 

2,859,446 
284,126 

5,934,743 
9,568,538 

13,326,842 

(81,765) 

(2,248,463) 

(24,715) 

$ 20,540,437 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

General Construction 
Fund 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 3,661,115 $ 
Licenses and permits 535,255 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 126,614 
Fines and forfeitures 2,039 
Grants 45,873 
Interest 69,424 
Other 138,629 
Total revenues 4,578,949 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 749,134 
Public safety 1,129,383 
Sanitation 288,891 
Highways and streets 696,800 
Parks and recreation 441,8 I 9 

Debt service: 
Principal 35,717 
Interest 3,018 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 3,344,762 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 1,234, 187 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (1,390,020) 

Total other financing sources (uses) {1,390 020) 

Net change in fund balances (155,833) 

Fund balances - beginning 6,420, 184 

Fund balances - ending $ 6 264,35 1 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Fund 

935,600 
935,600 

(935 ,600} 

1,290,020 

1,290,020 

354,420 

2,505,026 

2,859,446 

$ 

$ 

S~ecial Revenue Funds 
Non-Major 

Municipal Governmental 
Aid Fund Funds 

$ 

49,946 

3,265 242 

53 ,211 242 

53,211 242 

53,21 I 242 

361 ,849 29,439 

415.060 $ 29,681 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,661,115 
535,255 
49,946 

126,614 
2,039 

45,873 
72,931 

138 629 
4,632,402 

749,134 
1,129,383 

288,891 
696,800 
441,819 

35,717 
3,018 

935,600 
4,280,362 

352,040 

1,290,020 
{1 ,390 020) 

(100,000) 

252,040 

9,316,498 

$ 9 568,538 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is 
the amount by which net capital outlay of $1,151,034 exceeded 
depreciation of$675,528 in the current period. 

In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the sale of capital assets 
is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from 
the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets 
differs from the change in fund balances by the cost of the capital 
assets sold. 

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, leases, etc.) provide current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect 
on net position. This amount is the difference in the treatment of 
long-term debt. 

Expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Payments of pension contributions require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds . However, pension expense in the government­
wide statements are reported based on the actuarial study. This 
amount is the difference in the treatment of pension expense. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 252,040 

475,506 

(99,900) 

35,717 

(3,777) 

(347,176) 

$ 312,410 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY 
CALVERT CITY MUNICIPAL WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Accounts receivable - customers 
Other receivable - grant 
Due from the City of Calvert City 
Prepaid expenses 
Utility deposits 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred pension contributions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 
Accrued interest 
Other accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Current maturities of notes payable 
Current maturities of lease payable 
Customer deposits 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Accrued compensated leave 
Pension obligations 
Notes payable 
Lease payable 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Difference between projected and actuarial 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net invested in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Debt service 

Unrestricted - net position 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

June30,2017 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 1,526,817 
251,828 

14,279 
17,550 
31,731 

1,834 
1,844 ,039 

1,380,749 
10,957,643 
12,338,392 

14,182,431 

166,455 
166,455 

81.600 
7.758 
6.682 

52.4 71 
15,208 
29,883 

100,000 
30,361 

323 ,963 

462 
664 ,066 
793,585 
380,000 

1,838,113 

11,270 
11 .270 

11,034,925 

40,500 
23,113 

1,077,002 

$ 12, 175,540 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY 
CALVERT CITY MUNICIPAL WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM 

ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

Operating Revenues 
Water and sewer usage fees, net 
Hydrant fees 
Disconnect fees 
Customer penalties 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes 
Employee benefits 
Contractual services 
Audit and legal 
Operating supplies 
Training 
Utilities 
Communications 
Maintenance 
Insurance 
Transportation and travel 
Office supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Bad debts 
Depreciation 

Operating income 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest expense 
Service fees 
Gain on disposal of assets 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous expense 
Rental income 
Grant revenue 

For the Year ended June 30, 2017 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 

Income before Contributions and Transfers 

Contributions from customers 
Contributions - tap-on and assessment fees 
Transfers from the City of Calvert City 

Changes in net position 

Total net position - beginning as restated 

Total net position - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 1,575,647 
17,050 
7,595 

26,597 
1,626,889 

388,840 
26,775 

143,410 
135,956 

18,050 
64,419 

3,494 
189,720 

14,710 
177,042 
58,445 
10,943 
9,517 

32,272 
3,211 

479,634 
1,756,438 

(129,549) 

(41,550) 
(5,002) 

12,531 
977 

4,050 
750 

{28,244) 

(157,793) 

6,303 
100,000 

(51,490) 

12,227,030 

$ 12, 175,540 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY 
CALVERT CITY MUNICIPAL WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year ended June 30, 2017 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Collections from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 
Other receipts 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital expenditures 
Contributed capital and transfers 
Proceeds from grant revenue 
Proceeds from debt issues 
Principal payments on notes and bonds 
Principal payments on capital lease 
Interest payments on notes, bonds, and capital leases 

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest income 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
NET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH, END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING 
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition of equipment and improvements 
Amount financed with trade payables 

Net cash paid for equipment and improvements 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 1,650,366 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(721 ,716) 
(587,647) 

5,027 

346,030 

(797,829) 
106,303 

750 
463,537 
(20,416) 
(95 ,000) 
(41,550) 

(384 205) 

12,531 

12,53 1 

(25,644) 

1,552,461 

1,526,817 

817,682 
(19,853) 

797,829 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY 
CALVERT CITY MUNICIPAL WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the Year ended June 30, 2017 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Non-operating revenues and expenses 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable - others 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest and fees payable 
Customer deposits 
Pension obligation and related deferrals 
Other current liabilities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ (129,549) 

479,634 
25 

23,477 
(19,469) 

(7,533) 
28,143 

94 
(170) 

(29,966) 
1,344 

$ 346,030 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Calvert City, Kentucky complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of 
America (GAAP). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are discussed in 
subsequent sections of this Note. The Notes are organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, ofthe 
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

Reporting Entity 

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units (traditionally 
separate rep01ting entities) for which the City may be financially accounLable and, as such, should be included within the 
City's financial statements. The City (the primary governrn nl) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority 
of the organization's governing board and I) it is able to impo e its will on Lhc organizat ion or 2) there is a p tcntial for 
the organization to provide specific rrnancial burden on the City. Addit ionally, lhe primary government is required to 
consider other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity ' s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

The basic financial statements include a blended component unit. Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities are, in substance, part of the City's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary 
government. 

Blended Component Unit - The Calvert City Municipal Water and Sewer System serves all the citizens of the 
government and is g verned by a board appo inted by the Mayor f the ity of alvert ity. The rates fo r u er charge 
and debt issue authori zations are approved by the City of Calvert ity' ounc il and the legal li abili ty fo r general 
obligation debt of alvert City Municipal Water and e\,\'er ystem remai ns with the City of alveri i!y. The alvert 

ity Municipal Water and Sewer System is reported as an enterprise fun d. tand alone financial statements ofU1e Ca lvert 
' ity Municipal Water and Sewer System can be obtained at City Hall, Calvert City, Kentucky. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide fina nc ial ·tatements include the statement of net posit ion and the statemelll of act ivities. These 
statements report financial information about the City as a whole. Governme111al activities, which normally are supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the City · governmental activities. Direct expenses are those pecilically associated with a service, 
program or depa11ment and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular functi on. Program revenues include charges 
pa id by the recip ient of the goods or services offered by the function and grants and contribut ions resLTicted to meeting 
the operational or capita l requirements of a pruticular fun ction. Taxes and other items not classified as program revenues 
are presented as general revenues or the City. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the 
extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported in sepc1rate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting as is the proprietary fund. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred regardless of the Liming or related cash nows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they 
are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibi lity requirements are met. Governmental fund financial 
statements therefore include reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the re'lat ionsh ip between the 
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All 
governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement 
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of 
these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other 
financing uses) in net assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the 
cu1Tent period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. A 60-day availability period is 
used for revenue recognition for all governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due. 

The City reports unearned revenue on its government-wide statement of net position and on the fund financial 
statements. Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" 
criteria for recognition in the current period, Unearned revenue also arises when the City receives resources before it has 
a legal claim on them, as when grant funds are received prior to incurring qualified expenditures. In subsequent periods, 
when both revenue recognition criteria are met or the City has a legal laim to the resources, the liability for unearned 
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's practice to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Types and Major Funds 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting 
entity. The operations or each fund are accounted fo r with a separate set of selr-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, liabilities, fund equity revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Resources are allocated to and 
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. The City's major governmental funds are the General Fund, Construction Fund and 
Municipal Aid Fund. The following funds are used in the financial statements: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All financial resources, except those required 
to be accounted for in another fund, are accounted for in the General Fund. 

Construction Fund- The Construction Fund is used to account for the activities related to major capital projects of the 
City. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Municipal A id Fund is used to account for state aid for 
streets and road improvements. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses) of providing goods or services to 
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered priltlarily through user charges ; or, (b) where the 
governing body has decided that per iod ic determination of revenues earned, expenses inctm-ed, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses genera lly result from providing services and de livering goods in connection with a proprietary fund 's ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Municipal Water and ewer System are charges for water and sewer 
service. Operating expenses for entcrpris fund include the cost of sales and services, ad111 inistrative expenses and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

Deposits and Investments 

The City Council updated and adopted formal deposit and investment policies in December 1994. These policies apply to 
all City and component unit funds not contained in public trusts. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, "cash" includes all demand and savings accounts of the City. For the 
purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows, ''cash" include all restricted and unrestricted demand and 
savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. 
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange 
rates. Cash deposits and certificates of deposits are reported at carrying amount which reasonably estimates fair value. 
Additional cash and investment disclosures are presented in Note B. 

Governmental Fund Receivables 

Receivables consist of various grants and taxes net of allowances for doubtful accounts. All property taxes are due and 
payable on February I", and all Laxes not paid by March I, are deemed delinquent. There will be a penalty of six percent 
added to the ba lance due at this time. Taxes are normally levied by November I. Property tax liens will be filed mall 
delinquent taxes unpaid at December 31 st

. City property taxes are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in 
current receivables. 

Governmental funds report receivables for revenues that are considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current 
period while in the Statement of Net Position; receivables are reported for revenues when earned. 

Receivable, net of reserve, as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 

Statement of Governmental 
Description Net Position Funds 

Taxes: 
Franchise (general fund) $ 20,653 $ 20,653 
Payroll (general fund) 366,227 366,227 
Insurance (general fund) 147,058 147,058 
Property (general fund) 734 734 

Other (general fund) 97 97 
Total $ 534,769 $ 534.769 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Governmental Fund Receivables (continued) 

Due to the uncertainty of collection of property taxes, an allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided. The 
reserve amount for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $72,332. 

Due to the uncertainty of collection of franchise taxes, an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimate of 
material delinquent accounts has been provided. The reserve amount for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $211. 

Proprietary Fund Accounts Receivable and Bad Debts 

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment within 15 
days from the invoice mailing date. Unpaid accounts receivable with invoice mailing dates over 15 days old are subject 
to a 15% penalty on the outstanding balance. Customers are subject to disconnection after 30 days past invoice mailing 
date. Reconnections are subject to collect and reconnect fees. Due to the uncertainty regarding collecting, reconnect 
fees are recognized as income when received. 

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts billed to the customer plus any accrued penalties. Customer account balances 
with invoices over 30 days old are considered delinquent. 

Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's remittance advice or, 
if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoice. 

No allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided since it is believed the balance in accounts receivable is fully 
collectible. Customer accounts are written off after one year. The effect of using this method is not significantly 
different from results which would be obtained by using the allowance method. 

lnterfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reflected as either services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation, and are referred to as "due 
to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as 
a reimbursement. All other interfund trnnsactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary 
funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation. 

The summary of due to/from other funds as of June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 
Municipal Water & Sewer System 

Restricted Net Position 

Payable Fund 

Municipal Water & Sewer System 
General Fund 

$ 
$ 

Amount 

15,208 
17,550 

Certain special revenue funds and proprietary fund assets are restricted for special purpose or construction and are 
funded through enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors and grantors. 
Restricted assets are reported in various funds for cash deposited in bank accounts restricted for specified uses. Any 
required transfers to these funds have been made. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Restricted Net Position (Continued) 

As described in Note F, the City of Calvert City has en lered into a capital lease on behalf of the Calve,t City Municipal 
Water and Sewer System. Funds are held in the City's name for the debt service. Funds are distributed as expenditures 
are incurred. All required distributions have been made. 

The following is a summary of restricted net position at June 30, 20 I 7: 

Special Revenue 

Street improvements 
Coal severance 

Capital Assets 

$ 415,059 
29 682 

44 l 

Proprietary Fund 

Capital projects 
Debt service 

$ 40 500 
23 11 3 

3 .6J 

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related t·o activities reported in the propl"ietary funds. These assets 
generally result from expendi tures in the govcrnmenlal funds. These assets are reported in [he governmental activities 
column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund financial statements, all capital assets are 
capitalized at cost or estimated historical cost and updated for additions and retirements during the yea r. Capital assets 
do1rnted are recorded at thei r fair market values at the date received . Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets as follows : 

Government Funds 

Buildings 
Building improvements 
General equipment & furnishings 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure and land improvements 

Compensated Absences 

25-50 
10-25 
5-25 
5-10 

12-50 

Proprietary Funds 

Water and sewer plant 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

10-40 
5-10 

5 

The City's policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. Vacation leave is 
ea rned based on years of credited service. Vacation leave accrues annuall y on January I si and City policy requires u e by 
the encl of the ca lendar year. ick leave fo r vested employees (minimum of six months service before becoming eligible) 
is ea rned on the bas is of½ day per month . Employees may accumulate a maximum of sixty days. Upon retirement, day 
accumulated shall have a cash value equal to 50% of their current wage. All vacation and sick leave is accrued when 
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirement. As 
of June 30, 2017, the liability for accrued vacation and sick leave was $81,768 for the City of Calvert City and $31,947 
for the Calvert City Municipal Water and Sewer System. 

-25-



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Balance Reserves 

The City fund balance reserves are reported under the requirements of GJ\SB Statement 54, "Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions", which defines how fund balances of the governmenta l funds are presented in 
the financial statements. Fund balances are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form 
(such as prepaid) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted fund balances arise when constraints placed on the use ofresources are either externally imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

ommifl ed fund balance. includes amounts that can on ly be used for specific purposes (su h as futu re 
construction projects) pursuant to constraint imposed by form al action of the government 's highest level of 
decision-making authority, which, for the City is the City Counc il. The City Council must approve by majority 
vote the establishment (and modification or rescinding) of fund balance commitments. 

Assigned fund balances arc those amounts that arc constrained by the government's intent to be used for 
specili purpose, but are neither restricted nor commitled. Assigned fund balance also includes I) all remaining 
amoun ts (excepl for negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds other than the general fund 
that are not class ified as nonspcndable and are neither restricted or committed and 2) amounts in the general 
fund that are intended to be used for a specific purpose (such as Cemetery, Fire Vehicles and Equipment, 
DARE, City Beautification). 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents fund 
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to 
specific purposes within the general fund. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and dis losures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Government-wide Statement 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate ection for de ferred outflows of 
resource . Deferred outflows ofresow·ces represents the consumption of net position that applie t'o future periods and 
will not be recognized as c.1 11 outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) unt il then. The City has one item that qualifies 
for reporting in the category which is defe1Ted pension related out nows reported in lhe statements of net position . 

The de fe rred pension outflow results from pension contributions subsequent to the measurement dale of the pension plan 
and various changes resulting from acluarial pension measurement. The pension contribution amount is deferred and 
recognized as a component of the change in pension plan liability in rhe next measurement period. The various changes 
resulting from actuarial pension measurement are deferred and amortized in future periods as a component of the pension 
expense. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. Deferred inflows ofresources represents an acquisition ofnet position that applies to future periods and will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one type of item reported in this 
category, which is deferred pension related inflows. The various changes resulting from actuarial pension measurement 
are deferred and amortized in future periods as a component of the pension expense. 

A summary of change in deferred outflows/inflows of resources is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Ju l)! I, 20 16 Additions Reductions JuneJO, 20 17 

Governmental Activities 
Deferred pension contributions $ 180,415 $ 185,284 $ (180,415) $ 185,284 
Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proporl iona/e share of contributions 239, 198 (70,147) 169,051 

Differences between expected and 
ac/ua/ experience 31,234 (5,529) 25 ,705 

Change of assumptions 213,975 (50,678) 163,297 
Difference between projected and 
actuarial earnings 162 750 157 886 (52 ,927) 267 709 
Pension related deferred ou(flows $ 588 314 $ 582li8 $ (352 626) $ 811 046 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions $ 89,429 $ 25,874 $ (33,161) $ 82,142 

Difference between projected and 
ac/uarial earnings 145 034 (1 45,034) 
Pension related deferred inflows $ 234 463 $ 25 874 $ (178 125) $ 82 )42 

Business-Type Activities 
Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred pension contributions $ 40,575 $ 47,514 $ (40,575) $ 47,514 
Changes in proportion and differences 

between employer contributions and 
proportion share of contributions 26,083 (7,649) 18,434 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 5,377 (2,478) 2,899 

Change of assumptions 65,251 (30,072) 35,179 
Difference between projected and 
actuarial earnings 52 159 21 411 (11, 141 l 62 429 
Pension related deferred outflows $ 163 362 $ 25 008 $ (21,215) $ 166,455 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportiona/e share of contributions $ 8,774 $ 8,478 $ (5,982) $ 11,270 

Difference between projected and 
actuarial earnings 46 358 
Pension related deferred inflows $ 55,132 $ 8 478 $ 11 270 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Budget 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements: 

I. Prior to July I, the Mayor submits to the City ouncil a proposed operat ing budget covering the General Fund and 
each of the City's Special Revenue Funds for the fiscal year commencing July I. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted by the City to obtain taxpayer comments. 
3. Prior to July I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 
4. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. GAAP. 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriation 

There are no funds of the City that currently have a deficit fund balance. 

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned 
or the ity will nol be ab le to recover collaterAI securil ie in the posse sion ofan outs ide party. The City's investment 
policy requir s all inve tments be made in ace rdance with applicable lega l rcquir men! with cons ideration of 
investment safety. Accordingly, the City maintains co llatera l Agreements with its financia l institutions. Deposits are 
I 00% secured wi Lh co llateral valued al market or par whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal Depo it 
Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC). The City Council approves and des ignates a list of authorized depository 
institutions based on evaluation of solicited responses and certifications provided by financial institutions and 
recommendations of an evaluation committee and/or City Clerk. 

Depo. ils of'the City' reporting entity are insured or coll ateralized with securitie held by the Ci ty, its agent, or by the 
pledging linancial inst itution's trust department or agent in the name of the City. During the year ended June 30, 20 17 
the City 's on ly cash wa demand deposits. At year end the cany ing amount and the bank ba lance of the City s cash was 
$9,3 10 243 and $9,528,926 re pecti vely. As of June 30 2017, $9 278 926 of th City's bank balance was collateralized 
with securities held by the City 's agent. 

Depos its of the City s proprietary fUJ1d are insured or collateralized with ecuril ies he ld by the ity, it agent, or by the 
pledging financial Institution's trust department or agent in tJ1 e name of the City. Duri ng the year ended June 30, 2017 
the proprietary fund 's only cash were demand deposits. At year end the cany ing amount, including restricted cash, and 
the bank balance of th e proptietary fund 's cash was $ 1,526 81 7 and $ 1 557 047 respectively. As of June 30, 2017 
$1 ,307,047 ofthe proprietary fund ' s bank balance was collateralizcd with sc urities held by Lile ity's agent. 

Investment Policies 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Generally, the 
City's investing activi ties are managed under the custody of the iiy's City Clerk. Investing is performed in accordance 
with investment policies adopted by the City Council complying with late Statutes. In a cordance with the City's 
investment policy and the State Statutes, the City may invest funds temporarily in excess of operating needs in the 
following: 

I. Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, including obligations subject to repurchase 
agreements, provided delivery of obligations subject to repurchase agreements are held by the City or through 
an authorized agent; 
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Investment Policies (Continued) 

2. Obligations and contracts for future delivery or purchase of obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the 
United States or a United States government agency; 

3. Obligations of any corporation of the United States government; 
4. Bonds or certificates of indebtedness of the state of Kentucky and of its agencies and instrumentalities; 
5. Certificates of deposit issued by or other interest-bearing accounts of any bank or savings and loan institution 

whi ' h are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or simi lar entity or which are collateralized, to 
the extent uninsured by any obligations permitted by section 41.240(4) of the Kentucky Revised Statutes; 

6. Bankers ' acceptances for banks rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating 
agency. 

7. Commercial paper rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency. 
8. Securities issued by a state or local government, or any instrumentality or agency thereof, in the United States, 

and rated in one of the three highest categories by a national recognized rating agency. 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The City 
policy provides that to the extent feasible, investments are matched with anticipated cash tlows. Investments are 
diversified to minimize the risk ofloss resulting from over-concentration ofassets in a specific maturity period, a single 
iss.uer, or an individual class of securities. With the exception of fully collateralized investments and authorized 
investment pools, no 111ore than 15% of the City's total investment portfolio shall be invested in a ingle security type or 
with c1 single financial institution. Unless matched to a specific cash flow investments are not, in genera l made in 
securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase. Surplus cash may be invested in securities exceeding 
five years if the maturity of such investments is made to coincide as nearly as feasible with the expected use of the 
investment. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a 
single issuer. The City's policy limits total cumulative investments at any one time in categories 6, 7, and 8 listed 
previously not to exceed 20% of the total amount offunds invested. In addition, the policy does not pennit purchases on 
a margin basis or through the use of any similar leveraging technique. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City had no investments as all deposits were in demand deposit accounts. 
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NOTE C- CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of the capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended at June 30, 20 I 7, was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Governmenta l Funds Ju ly 1,2016 Additions Deduction ,June 30, 2017 

a12ita l assets, not being degreciated: 
Land $ 4,875,953 $ 22,520 $ 99,900 . $ 4,798,573 
Construction in Progress 195 158 573,536 27 1 197 497 497 
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 5,071,111 596,056 371 097 5,296.070 

Cagita l assets, being -d i-2rec ia1ed: 
Infrastructure and land improvements 11,266,015 397,707 11,663,722 
Buildings 2,179,171 29,785 2,208,956 
Building improvements 694,133 45,357 739,490 
Vehicles 2,033,801 I 16,744 20,816 2,129,729 
General equipment and furnishings 2,115,225 236,583 2,35 1,808 

Totals at historical cost 18,288J45 826. 176 20 816 19,093,705 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Infrastructure and land improvements 6,231,430 349,239 6,580,669 
Buildings 1,005,726 51,127 1,056,853 
Building improvements 231,420 27,483 258,903 
Vehicles 1,561,776 108,534 20,816 1,649,494 
General equipment and furnishings 1,377,868 139 145 1,517,013 

Total accumulated depreciation 10,408,220 675,528 20,8 16 11,062,932 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, 
net: 7,880,125 150 648 8,030,773 

Primary Government Activities 
Capital Assets - Net $ ]46,7Q4 $ 3]1,Q2] .$~ 1 
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NOTE C- CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Balance 
Pronrietary Fund Julyl.2016 

Cagital assets. \1ot being degreciated: 
Land $ 282,886 
Construction in Progress 942 607 
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 1,225.493 

Capil!ll a sets, being d greciated: 
Water and sewer system 18,258,792 
Vehicles 297,902 
Equipment 306,044 

Totals at historical cost 18,862,738 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Water and sewer system 7,716,935 
Vehicles 160,574 
Equipment 210,378 

Total accumulated depreciation 8,087,887 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, 
net: 10,774.851 
Component Unit Activities 
Capital Assets - Net $ 12.QQ 3M 

Depreciation expense, by functi on, was as follows: 

General government 
Public Safety 
Sanitation 
Parks and recreation 
Highways and streets 

Water and Sewer System 

NOTED - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

$ 

$ 

Additions 

$ 

$_ 

787,080 

787 080 

631,823 
26,541 

4 062 
662,426 

435,5 16 
23,400 
20 718 

479 634 

182 792 

142,830 
137,587 
30,726 

I 08,362 
256,023 

52.8 

497,6_:M 

Deductions 

$ 
63 1,824 

63 1 824 

$ 6J 1,8 

The City of Calvert City had the following capital projects in process at June 30, 2017: 

Shar-Cal Road upgrade 
Royal Park Paving 
Batting Cage Installation 
Multi-Use Walking Trail 
Fountain - Engineering 
Fountain - Memorial Park 

$ 

-3 1-

Cumulative 
Costs Incurred 

$ 4,375 
4,860 

16,309 
143,628 

4,465 
323,860 

497.497 

Balance 
June 30, 2017 

$ 282,886 
1,097,863 

1,3 80,749 

18,890,615 
324 ,44 3 
310 106 

19,252.164 

8,152,451 
183,974 
231,096 

8,567,52 1 

10,957,643 

' 
$ 12J.J8 322 
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NOTED - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (Continued) 

The Calvert City Municipal Water and Sewer System had the following capital projects in process at June 30, 2017: 

Industrial WWTP Study Project 
Sewer Rehab - Phase I I I 
Sanitary Sewer - Phase IV 
Heights Water Main Replacement 
Other Projects 

Cumulative 
Costs Incurred 

$ 420,742 
581,102 
41,316 
27,870 
26,833 

3 

Completion of these projects is based upon the availability of additional resources. 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The City provides retirement benefits to its employees through a multi-employer public employee retirement fund 
administered by the Kentucky County Employees Retirement System (CERS). Information regarding this plan is as 
follows: 

County Employees' Retirement System 

Plan description - The City is a participant in the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement System, an agency of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky. Under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statute ("KRS") Section 61 .645, the Board 
of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement System administers CERS and has the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions. The Kentucky Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for CERS. That report may be obtained from hLtp://kyret.ky.gov/. 

Benefits provided - CERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability benefits to Plan employees and 
beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after five years' service. For retirement purposes, non-hazardous and 
hazardous employees are grouped into three tiers, based on hire date: 

Non-hazardous members: 
Tier 1 Participation date 

Unreduced retirement 
Reduced retirement 

Tier 2 

Tier 3 

Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Prior to September I, 2008 
27 years of service or 65 years old 
Minimum 5 years of service and 55 years old 
Minimum 25 years of service and any age 

September I, 2008 to December 31, 2013 
Minimum 5 years of service and 65 years old 
Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
Minimum 10 years of service and 60 years old 

After December 31, 2013 
Minimum 5 years of service and 65 years old 
Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equal 87 
Not available 
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NOTE E- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

Hazardous members: 
Tier 1 Participation date 

Unreduced retirement 

Tier 2 

Tier 3 

Reduced retirement 

Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Participation date 
Unreduced retirement 

Reduced retirement 

Prior to September I, 2008 
20 years of service and any age 
Minimum 5 years of service and 55 years old 
Minimum 15 years of service and 50 years old 

September I, 2008 to December 31, 2013 
Minimum 5 y ars of serv ice and 60 years old 
25 years of service and any age 
Minimum 15 year of service and 50 years old 

After December 31, 2013 
Minimum 5 years of service and 60 years old 
25 years of service and any age 
Not available 

Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the General Assembly. Retirement is based on a factor of the 
number of years' service and hire date multiplied by the average of the highest five years' earnings. Reduced benefits are 
based on factors of both of these componen . Parti cipating employees become eligible to receive the health insurance 
benefi t after at least 180 months of service. Death benefi LS are provided for ei ther death after reti rement or dealh prior to 
retirement. Death benefits after retirement are $5,000 in lump sum. Five year ' ervice is required for death benefits prior to 
r tirement and the employee must have suffered a duty-related d ath. The decedent's beneficiary will recei ve th higher of 
the normal death benefit and $10,000 plus 25% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay and any dependent child will 
receive I 0% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay up to 40% for all dependent children. Five years' service is required 
for non-service related disability benefits. 

Plan Funding- State statute requires active members to contribute% of creditable compensation based on the tier: 

Non-lUlzartlous Hazardous 
Required Contribution Required Contribution 

Tier I 
Tier2 
Tier 3 

5% 
5% plus I% for insurance 
5% plus I% for insurance 

Tier I 
Tier 2 
Tier 3 

8% 
8% plus I% for insurance 
8% plus I% for insurance 

Employers contribu te al the rate detennined by the CERS Board to be necessary for the actuarial soundness of the 
system, as requ ired by KRS 6 I .565 and 61.752. The City 's required contribution rate was 17.06% for non-hazardous 
employees and 32.95% for hazardous employees fo r the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2017, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability for CERS. The 
amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability that was associated with the City was 
as follows: 

City's non-hazardous proporlionate share of the CERS net pension liability 
City's hazardous proportionate share o f the CERS net pension liability 

Total CERS net pension liability associated with the City 
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$ 

$ 

2,377,954 
I 263 479 

3,641,433 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

The net pension liability for each plan was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

The City's proportion of the net pension liability for CERS was based on the actual liability of the employees and fonner 
employees relative to the total liability of the System as determined by the actuary. At June 30, 2016, the City's non­
hazardous proportion was 0.048297% percent and hazardous proportion was 0.073600% percent. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of$544,069 related to CERS pension plans. At 
June 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to the CERS 
pension plans from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between City 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 
City contributions subsequent to the 

Measurement date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 28,604 
198,476 

330,138 

187,485 

232,798 

$ 977,501 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
R sources 

93,412 

93.412 

The City reported $232,798 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions which will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 

Hazardous 
$ 78,726 

78,726 
83,976 
24,303 

Non­
Hazardous 

$ 135,652 
I 05,833 
94,239 
49,836 

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Projected salary increases 
Investment rate of return, net of 

investment expense & inflation 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

For CERS, Mortality rates for the period after service retirement are according to the RP-2000 Combined Mortality 
Table proj ected with Scale BB to 20 I 3 for all active and retired employees and beneficiar ies. The RP-2000 Combined 
Morta lity Table proj ect.ed With Scale B13 to 201 3 set back four years for males is used for Lhe period after di sabi lity 
ret irement. The actuaria l as umptions used were ba ed on the results of an ac! uarial experi ence study fo r the period July 
I, 2008 - June 30, 2013; 

For CERS, the long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared 
every five years. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is outlined 
in a repori dated April 30, 2014 . Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption 
including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense and 
inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment 
consultant are intended for use over a IO-year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for 
funding pension plans which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is 
not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a 
fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, as provided by 
CERS's investment consultant, are summarized in the following table: 

Target Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Allocation Rcnl Rate of Return 

Combined Equity 44.0% 5.40% 
Combined Fixed Income 19.0% 1.50% 
Real Estate 5.0% 4.50% 
Private Equity 10.0% 8.50% 
Real Return (Diversified Inflation 
Strategies) 10.0% 3.50% 
Absolute Return (Diversified 
Hedge Funds) 10.0% 5.50% 
Cash 2.0% (0 .25%) 

Total 

Discou111 rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pens ion Ii bi lity was 7.50%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount ra te assumed that contri butions from plan employees and employers wil l be made at 
statlrtory contTibution rates. Projected inflows from investment earn ings w re ca lculated us ing the long-term assumed 
investment return of 7.50%. The long-term investment rate of return was appl ied to all period ofprojected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

Sensitivity of CERS proportionate share of net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table 
presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rates selected by the pension system, as well 
as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point 
lower or I -percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Current 
1% Discount 1% 

Dccrea e Rate Increase 

CERS 6.50% 7.50% 8.50% 
Non-hazardous' proportionate share of 

net pension liability $ 2,963,317 $ 2,377,954 $ 1,876,183 
Hazardous' proportionate share of 

net pension liability $ 1,587,298 $ 1,263,479 $ 996,384 

Pension planfiducia,y net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued financial report of the CERS. 

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Govcrn menhll Fund 

The City of Calvert City has entered into a capital lease agreement with the Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust for 
the purchase of equipment. For the year ended June 30, 2017, amortization of$30,858 related to the leased equipment 
was included in depreciation. 

Lease payable consists of the following: 

Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust lease, dated January 2, 2008, 
with fixed interest rate of 3 .64%, maturing February I , 2018, collateralized 
by equipment 

Less current maturities 

A detail schedule of the City's future lease and interest requirements is shown below: 

Years Ending Interest and 
June 30, Interest Rate Service Fee Pr incipa l 

2018 3.64% I 130 24 715 

$ 1,]3Q $ 24,715 
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$ 

$ 

24,7 15 

24 715 

Total 

25.845 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The City of Calvert City has entered into a capital lease agreement, on behalf of its blended component unit, with the 
Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust for the construction of an above ground water storage facility. At the end of 
the lease term, title of the facility will pass to the Water & Sewer System. For the year ended June 30, 2017, amortization 
of $40,286 related to the leased facility was included in depreciation. 

Lease payable consists of the following: 

Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust lease, dated January 30, 2002, 
with fi xed interest rate of 4.68%, maturing October 30, 202 1, collateralized · 
by all taxable property of the City of Calvert City 

Less current maturities 

$ 480,000 

100,000 

_$___18.Q 

A detail schedule of the blended component unit's future lease and interest requirements is shown below: 

Years Ending Interest and 
June 30, Interest Rate Service Fee Principal Total 

2018 4.68% 24,321 100,000 124,321 
2019 4.68% 18,907 100,000 118,907 
2020 4.68% 13,511 100,000 113,511 
2021 4.68% 7,728 120,000 127,728 
2022 4.68% I 400 60,000 61 400 

$ 65,867 $ 480,QQQ $ 545,861 

The City of Calvert City entered into an assistance agreement on behalf of the System with the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority (KIA) for cap ital projects b ginning in the fiscal year 20 I 0. This agreement provides capital proj ect funding 
utilizing a combination of both long-term borrnwing and federal stimulus grants funds from th American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act. The notes mature December I, 2031 with semi-annual payments principal and interest accruing at 
3.00%. 

Notes payable consists of the following: 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority lease, dated February I, 20 I 0, with 
fixed interest rate of 3 .00%, maturing June 30, 2031, collateralized by 
water and sewer system property. 
Less current maturities 
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359,93 I 
21 033 

318. 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The detail schedule of future principal and interest requirements on notes payable are as follows: 

Years Ending Interest and 
June 30, Interest Rate Service Fee Principal 

2018 3.00% $ 11,351 $ 21,033 
2019 3.00% 10,673 21,669 
2020 3.00% 9,974 22,324 
2021 3.00% 9,254 22,999 
2022 3.00% 8,513 23,694 

2023 - 2027 3.00% 30,633 129,655 
2028-2031 3.00% 8,684 118 557 

$ 352,231 

Total 

$ 32,384 
32,342 
32,298 
32,253 
32,207 

160,288 
127,241 

$ 

The City of Calvert City entered into an assistance agreement on behalfofthe System with the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority (KIA) for capital projects beginning in the fiscal year 2017. The notes mature. December I, 2037 with semi­
annual payments principal and interest accruing at 2.75%. 

Notes payable consists of the following: 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority lease, dated October I, 2016, 
with fixed interest rate of2.75%, maturing December 1, 2037, 
collateralized by water and sewer system property. 
Less current maturities 

2017 

$ 

The detail schedule of future principal and interest requirements is as follows: 

Years Ending Interest and 
June 30, Interest Rate Service Fee Principal 

2018 2.75% $ 6,837 $ 8,850 
2019 2.75% 13,285 17,903 
2020 2.75% 12,753 18,399 
2021 2.75% 12,206 18,908 
2022 2.75% 11,645 19,432 

2023 - 2027 2.75% 49,239 105,533 
2028 - 2032 2.75% 32,673 120,976 
2033 - 2037 2.75% 13,684 138,678 

2038 2.75% 220 14 858 
$ 152,542 s. 6 
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2016 

$ 

Total 

$ 15,687 
31,188 
31,152 
31,114 
31,077 

154,772 
153,649 
152,362 

15 078 
$ 616,Q12 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G-CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Addilions Reductions 

Governmental activities : 
Capital leases $ 60,432 $ $ (3 5,71 7) 
Pension obligation 2,255,198 937,222 (2 15,053) 
Accumulated sick leave 77 991 11 2, 100 ( I 08,323 ) 

Governmental activity 
Long-term liabilities 22 $ (359,093) 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Business-type activities : 
Bonds payable: 
Notes payable $ 380,347 $ 463,537 $ (20,416) 
Capital leases 575,000 (95,000) 
Pension obligation 647,077 55,307 (38,318) 
Accumulated sick leave 25 759 38 194 (32,006) 

Business-type activities 
Long-term liabilities $ 1,.6: 8. 183 $ 551.QlS (I 85,1~0) 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 24,7 15 
2,977,3 67 

8 1 768 

$ 3.,083.85_0 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 823,468 
480,000 
664,066 

31 647 

L 9 481 

NOTE H - DISCLOSURES REGARDING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Accounti ng Poli ·y 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 24,715 

79,526 

.$_J_Q .241 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 29,883 
100,000 

31,485 

$_l6J. 6_£ 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash include all restricted and unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments 
with maturities of three months or less. 

upplcmcuta l Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 

Cash paid for interest expense during the year ended June 30, 2017 was $41,455. 

NOTE I - CONCENTRATION OF CUSTOMERS 

The Calvert City Municipal Water and Sewer System provide service to five significant commercial and industrial 
customers. These customers accounted for $447,469 of total revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017. The ity f 
Calve1i receives approximately 57% of its payroll lax revenue from 8 industrial employers. Loss of these revenues would 
have a significant impact. 

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City and the 'alverl ity Municipal Waler & Sewer System are exposed to various risks of loss including, but not 
limited to property, casualty, general liability auto liability, public officials' liability, employees ' health and life, and 
workers compensation. 

To limit exposure to these risks, the City and the Ca lvert ity Municipal Water o Sewer ys tem contracts for insurnnce 
'overage. During the year ended June 30, 2017, there were no significant reductions in insurance coverage. There have 
been no significant sett lement amounts if any, which exceed insurance cov · rage in the pas l two years. The ity and 
Municipal System are not aware of any claims outstanding as of June 30, 2017. 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Federa l and State Gra nts 

The City and Municipal System, on behalf of the City, receives grant fu nds fro m vari ous fe deral and state government 
agencies to be used for designated purpose only. The grant programs arc subject lo audi t by agents of the granting 
authorities to insure compliance with conditions surrounding the granting of fund s. I f t he grantor' s revi ew indicates the 
funds have not been used for the intended purpose, the grantor may request re fund of funds advanced or refuse to 
reimburse the City for its expenditures. The amount of such future refunds and un-reimbursed expenditures, if any is not 
expected to be significant. Continuation of the City's grant programs is predicated upon the grantor's satisfaction that the 
funds provided are spent as intended and the grantor's intent to continue their programs. 

Proprietary Fu nds 

During the year ended June 30, 20 I 5, the System entered into a contractual agreement for $390,700 for an Industrial 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Study. The System began the study in the prior year and expects to complete the study in 
the next fiscal year. The project is funded from ontTibutions of$2 1 O 000 from various companies in the industrial park; 
$100,000 from the System and City of Calvert City, Kentucky; and a $200,000 matching grant from the Economic 
Development Administration (EDA) . For the year ended June 30, 2017, the System incurred contractual costs of$9,600 
related to the Industrial Wastewater Treatment Plant Study. 

NOTE L - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service, subsidies of various City 
operations and re-allocations of special revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the City 's transfer activity: 

Between Governm ental and Business-Type Activities 

Transfer From 

General Fund 

Transfer To 

Municipal Water 
and Sewer System 

NOTE M-TAX ABATEMENTS 

Amount 

$ 100.000 

Purpose 

Debt service subsidy and capital project 

The Kentucky Business Investment (KB!) Program, KR 154.32 provides income tax credits and wage assessments to 
new and existing manufacturing companies, and non-retail service companies that locate or expand operations in 
Kentucky. The Program can be set to last up to IO years. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City rebated employee 
local payroll taxes totaling $77,200 under this program. 

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 3, 2018, the date which the financial statements were 
available to be issued . 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual 
General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
Grants and other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Sanitation 
Highway and streets 
Parks and Cemetery 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

See auditors report on page I . 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 3,181,000 
389,020 
116,000 

3,200 
50,800 
55,836 

3,795,856 

775,200 
1,285,100 

322,150 
741,000 
571,100 

35,717 
2,997 

3,733,264 

62,592 

(100,000) 
(100,000) 

(37,408) 

6,420,184 

$ 6,382,776 

-41-

$ 3,750,400 
414,070 
116,000 

1,700 
50,800 

207,250 
4,540,220 

770,000 
1,185,901 

290,000 
725,000 
437,000 

35,717 
2,997 

3,446 615 

1,093,605 

(I 390,000) 
(1,390 000) 

(296,395) 

6,420,184 

$ 6, [23,789 

Total 
Actual 

$ 3,661,115 
535,255 
126,614 

2,039 
69,424 

184,502 
4,578,949 

749,134 
1,129,383 

288,891 
696,800 
441,819 

35,717 
3,018 

3,344,762 

1,234,187 

(1,390,020) 
(1,390,020) 

(155,833) 

6,420,184 

$ 6,264 351 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 

$ (89,285) 

$ 

121,185 
10,614 

339 
18,624 

(22 748) 
38,729 

(20,866) 
(56,518) 

(1,109) 
(28,200) 

4,819 

21 
(101,853) 

140,582 

(20) 
(20) 

140,562 

140,562 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual 
Municipal Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public Safety 
Highway and streets 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds of long-term debt 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

See auditors report on page 1. 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

50,500 

50,500 

50,500 

50,500 

361 ,849 

$ 53,100 

53,100 

53 100 

53,100 

361,849 

$ 4 12,349 $ 4 14,949 
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$ 

$ 

Total 
Actual 

49,946 
3,265 

53 ,21 I 

53,21 I 

53,2 I I 

361 ,849 

415,060 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Over (Under) 

$ 

$ 

(3,154) 
3,265 

l l 1 

111 

l I I 



CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

TO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS* 

City's share of the 
City's net pension Plan fiduciary 

proportion City's liability (asset) as net position as a 
of the net proportionate share a percentage of its percentage of 

Year Ended pension of the net pension City's covered covered employee the total pension 
June 30 liability liability (asset) employee payroll payroll liability 

CERS No11/uq,_artlous 

2017 0.0483% $ 2,377,955 $ 1,167,684 203.6471% 55.5028% 

2016 0.0458% $ 1,970,629 $ 1,081,582 182.1988% 59.9684% 

2015 0.0484% $ 1,571,402 $ 1,025,235 153.2724% 66.8010% 

2014 0.0484% $ 1,778,089 $ 919,617 193.3510% 66.2209% 

CERS Haiardous 

2017 0.7360% $ 1,263,479 $ 389,413 324.4573% 53.9483% 

2016 0.0607% $ 931,646 $ 311,161 299.4096% 57.5152% 

2015 0.0675% $ 811,232 $ 341,885 237.2821% 63.4574% 

2014 0.0675% $ 905,936 $ 323,216 280.2881% 65.7178% 

* The amounts presented were determined as of the measurement date June 30 of the prior year. 

* Schedule is intended to show information for IO years. Additional years of supplementary information will be provided as 

this information becomes available. 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

TO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS* 

Contributions Contributions 
relative to as a percentage 

Contractually contractually City's covered of covered 
Year Ended required required Contribution employee employee 

June 30 contribution contribution deficiency (excess) payroll payroll 

CERS No11/u1~ardo11s 

2017 $ 158,957 $ 158,957 $ $ 1,141,459 13.9258% 

2016 $ 145,295 $ 145,295 $ $ 1,167,684 12.4430% 

2015 $ 136,843 $ 136,843 $ $ 1,081,582 12.6521% 

2014 $ 137,441 $ 137,441 $ $ 1,025,235 13.4058% 

2013 $ 125,017 $ 125,017 $ $ 919,617 13.5945% 

CERS Hu·r/mlous 

2017 $ 73,841 $ 73,841 $ $ 340,877 21.6621% 

2016 $ 75,695 $ 75,695 $ $ 389,413 19.4382% 

2015 $ 65,587 $ 65,587 $ $ 311,161 21.0782% 

2014 $ 64,954 $ 64,954 $ $ 341,885 18.9988% 

2013 $ 65,246 $ 65,246 $ $ 323,216 20.1865% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date June 30 of the prior year. 

* Schedule is intended to show information for IO years. Additional years of supplementary information will be provided 
as this information becomes available. 

Changes of Benefit Terms: 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

A cash balance plan was introduced for members whose participation date is on or after January 1, 2014. 

Changes of assumptions: 

The assumptions were updated as of result of an experience study for the three year period ending June 30, 2013. 

The amortization period of the unfunded accrued liability was reset to a closed 30 year period for the year ended June 30, 
2013. 

The discount rate changed from 7. 7 5% to 7.50% for fiscal year 2016. 

The inflation rate changed from 3.50% to 3.25% for fiscal year 20_16. 
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CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Cash - restricted 
Grant receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Restricted: 

Program purposes 
Total liabilities and fund balances 

See auditors report on page I. 

Nonrnajor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2017 

Special Revenue 
Funds 

LGEA Coal Small Grants 
Severance Fund 

$ 29,681 $ 

$ 29,681 $ 

29 681 
$ 29,681 $ 
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Total Nonrnajor 
Governrnenta I 

Funds 

$ 29,681 

$ 29,681 

29,681 
$ 29,681 



REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Grant revenue 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

See auditors report on page 1. 

CITY OF CALVERT CITY, KENTUCKY 
Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Special Revenue 
Funds 

$ 

$ 
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LGEACoal 
Severance 

242 
242 

242 

242 

29,439 

29,681 

Small Grants 
Fund 

$ 

$ 

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 

$ 

242 
242 

242 

242 

29,439 

29,681 



~~~ KEMPER 
-~CPA GROUPLLP 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Lynn Jones 
Members of the City Council 
City of Calvert City 
Calvert City, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Calvert City, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Calvert City, Kentucky's 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Calvert City, Kentucky's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Calvert City, Kentucky's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Calvert City, Kentucky's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Calvert City, Kentucky's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Paducah, Kentucky 
April 3, 20 I 8 
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